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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Kai
Yuan Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group” or “Kai Yuan”), | now present the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”).

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$30.6 million for the Year,
as compared to the profit of approximately HK$338.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Preceding Year"). The turnaround
from profit to loss was mainly attributable to the absence of any profit
contributed from the discontinued operation for the Year (the Preceding
Year: HK$338.6 million) and the decline in the revenue and gross profit
of the Paris Marriott Hotel Champs-Elysées (the “Paris Marriott Hotel")
from the hotel operation segment during the Year, as the result of the
continuation of the Yellow Vest Movement since 2018 and the occurrence
of the citywide labour strike in Paris since December 2019. Further details
will be addressed in the section headed Management Discussion and
Analysis.

The Group acquired 6.25% of equity interests in 1t R elix EEHL A R

/3 |] (Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering Science & Technology Co.,
Ltd*) (the “Target Company”) in the Preceding Year. During the Year,
the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with one of the
shareholders of the Target Company, pursuant to which the Group will
further increase the equity interests in the Target Company to 37.125%.
Further details will be addressed in the section headed Acquisitions and
Disposals.

Looking forward, the Group anticipates business and investment outlook
of 2020 will be extremely challenging. For the hotel operation segment,
the outbreak and widespread of the coronavirus disease in Europe in
the first quarter of 2020 will definitely hinder tourists’ travel intention
and thus reduce the demand of hotel rooms in Paris. As at the date of
this report, the European Union announced plans for a 30-day ban on
non-essential travel into the bloc by non-European Union citizens from
17 March 2020 in an attempt to contain coronavirus disease. In view of
such policy and in line with the recent various measures announced by
the French government, and after due and careful consideration by the
management of the Group, the Paris Marriott Hotel will be temporarily
closed until 15 April 2020 subject to the then circumstances. For the
money lending segment, the prices of residential property in Hong Kong
are expected to be under pressure after several months of instability in
2019, although it is not expected to see a major drop in prices in 2020. The
Group will stay cautious and vigilant when conducting existing business
while being attentive to new investment opportunities.

In conclusion and on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers,
employees, suppliers and business partners for their continuous support
and encouragement.

On behalf of the Board
Xue Jian
Executive director and Chief Executive Officer

30 March 2020

*  For identification purposes only
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue of the Group from
continuing operations amounted to approximately HK$244.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 18.6% from approximately
HK$300.7 million for the Preceding Year. The decrease in revenue from
continuing operations during the Year was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue contributed by the Paris Marriott Hotel Champs-
Elysées ("Paris Marriott Hotel") of the hotel operation segment, as well as
the significant decrease in revenue generated from the money lending
segment. The Group recorded a loss for the Year from the continuing
operations of approximately HK$30.6 million, as compared to the profit
from continuing operations of approximately HK$0.2 million for the
Preceding Year. The Group recorded the loss for the Year of approximately
HK$30.6 million, as compared to the profit of approximately HK$338.9
million for the Preceding Year. The turnaround from profit to loss for
the Year was mainly attributable to (i) the absence of any profit from
the discontinued operation recorded by the Group during the Year (the
Preceding Year: HK$338.6 million); and (ii) the decline in revenue and
gross profit of the Paris Marriott Hotel during the Year, as a result of the
continued Yellow Vest Movement since 2018 and the occurrence of the
citywide labour strike in Paris since December 2019.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$30.6 million, as compared to the profit of
approximately HK$338.9 million for the Preceding Year. The basic and
diluted losses per share of the Company for the Year was HK0.24 cents,
as compared to the earnings per share of HK2.65 cents for the Preceding
Year.

Total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$4,210.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 3.0% from approximately HK$4,339.2 million as at
31 December 2018. The decrease in total assets of the Group was
mainly attributable to the record of the exchange loss on the non-
current assets as a result of devaluation of Euro against Hong Kong
Dollar. Total liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2019 amounted
to approximately HKS$1,787.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 3.0% from approximately HK$1,843.1 million as at 31
December 2018. The decrease in total liabilities of the Group was mainly
attributable to the decrease in interest-bearing bank borrowings as a
result of devaluation of Euro against Hong Kong Dollar, and the decrease
of the derivative financial instruments.

E 3 3E1)

HE-_Z—AFE+_A=1+—HBLEFE XK
S E R BB L & ET 2 Wk A #9244,700,000
T 0 B F E 49300,700,00078 7T T B4
186% ° A - REFELCEEF ZWE THK
T ERBEIE K E D ZBEE T Paris Marriott Hotel
Champs-Elysées([Paris Marriott Hotel]) FT &k
ZWERD - MEREBREEBH 2 W=
AEBRDAH - AEERAFELEERZ
FREIE B#30,600,0008 7T 0 MEFERBE
RIS 25 2 m F) Bl & #200,0008 7T © A
£ BERS F NEE#930,600,0008 70 mEF
[ BIJ$%15 5% 71 49338,900,00058 7T » ANEFHE A
ABEEEARO)AEBERF R ESRS MR
BERIEEB 2 aH (EKFE : 33860000048
TL) ¢ RNARNEEBERE —T— \ERBE
B EELTHINA_TE-AF+_A#
BAEMETEE THE - # RParis Marriott Hotel
ZERWE R EFR T o

RAREE  ARABEBEABLERAY
30,600,000 7T © MEAFERISSEARRHES
N JE {33 F1) 49338,900,00078 7T © AFE AN A]
BREARBEER 02481 mMEFEL
SRS ERRA N 2658 ©

R-ZE—hF+-—A=+—H8 ' ~&EEZE
ER{EA%4210,1000008 T BE_ZT— N
F4+ = A=+—H%94,339,200,0005 TR A &
30% c AEBZEEBERLSFEAREE
HABTLRESIBEERBEEHSGIE BB
HeR=ZBE—NF+=-_A=+—8 " £5E
2 BIE4EEE R %1,787,300,000/8 T - B E—
A\F+=A=+—H%J1,843,100,0007 JT & 4
#493.0% - NEBEZ BEARERLDEEHRME
HAELTREBSBG BRTEERDURITE
SR TR ADFTEL

BRIERAERAR | 2019 FF8E 5



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

Segmental review of the Group’s operations during the Year is as follows:

Hotel Operation

The Group recorded the revenue of approximately HK$240.9 million from
the hotel operation segment, as compared to the revenue from the hotel
operation segment of approximately HK$287.5 million for the Preceding
Year. The decrease in revenue of the hotel operation segment for the
Year was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue contributed by
the Paris Marriott Hotel. The Group recorded the loss of approximately
HK$14.7 million in this segment for the Year, as compared to the profit
of approximately HK$5.1 million for the Preceding Year. The turnaround
from profit to loss during the Year was mainly attributable to continuous
suppression of the performance of the Paris Marriott Hotel, as a result
of the continuation of the Yellow Vest Movement in Paris, France. The
occurrence of the citywide labour strike in Paris in December 2019 had
also contributed to halt visitors from traveling to the city. During the Year,
the Paris Marriott Hotel received a one-off net insurance compensation
from the business interruption caused by the Yellow Vest Movement of
approximately HK$14.2 million. The revenue from the Marriott Bonvoy
(previously known as the Marriott Rewards) continued as one of the prime
revenue sources to the Paris Marriott Hotel, where the hotel manager has
the sole discretion to determine guest room redemption rate. Below is
a comparison of the operational performance of the Paris Marriott Hotel
during the Year against the Preceding Year:
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Revenue from this segment amounted to approximately HK$3.8 million
during the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 71.3% from
approximately HK$13.2 million for the Preceding Year. The decrease in
revenue generated from this segment was mainly due to the decrease in
the amount of mortgage loans granted to borrowers for interest income
during the Year. The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$2.6
million from this segment for the Year, as compared to the profit of
approximately HK$12.1 million for the Preceding Year. As at 31 December
2019, the gross mortgage loan receivables amounted to approximately
HK$35.0 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$210.0 million).

The Group acquired 6.25% equity interest (the “2018 Equity Interest”)
in R IBERHE B R A A (Beijing Chemical Reaction Engineering
Science & Technology Co., Ltd*) (the “Target Company”, together with its
subsidiary companies, the “Target Group”) in the Preceding Year. During
the Year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
one of the shareholders of the Target Company, pursuant to which the
Group further acquired 30.875% equity interest in the Target Company
at the consideration of RMB12.35 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$13.7 million) (the “2019 Consideration”). The 2019 Consideration
represented a discount of approximately 56.6% to the adjusted net assets
value of the Target Group as at 30 June 2019. Based on the estimation
using the market approach, the Group recognized a fair value loss in other
comprehensive income of approximately HK$10.6 million on the 2018
Equity Interest during the Year.

The Group also entered into a shareholders agreement (the “Shareholder
Agreement”) with the other shareholders of the Target Company
pursuant to which, the Group undertook to provide a funding
commitment of up to RMB180.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$199.4 million) (“Funding Commitment”) to support the Target
Company for the purpose of funding the first phase of the production
facilities and office on a land parcel situated in Tieying Chemical Industry
Park of Laoling City in Shangdong Province, the PRC* (1L 58 %4 24 5% i i8] &
SE{L TEIR). As at the date of this report, a loan agreement for the loan
amounted to RMB180.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$199.4
million) regarding the Funding Commitment had been entered into by
the Group.

*  Foridentification purposes only
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PROSPECTS

The performance of the Paris Marriott Hotel continues to be affected by
the Yellow Vest Movement during the Year. The occupancy rate, average
daily rate, and revenue per available room of the Paris Marriott Hotel
continue to decline as compared to the Preceding Year. Notwithstanding
that the demonstration has been sanctioned to be relocated outside
the Avenue des Champs-Elysees and has spread to other cities in
France, demonstrators continue to gather during the weekend to voice
their demands. The citywide labour strike that occurred in December
2019 also assisted to halt tourists to plan a trip to Paris. The outbreak
of the coronavirus disease first started in Asia but subsequently spread
to worldwide has exerted tremendous pressure on cross border
traveling and further depress the demand for hotel rooms in 2020. The
combination of the above factors continues to affect the occupancy rate,
average daily rate, and revenue per available room of the Paris Marriott
Hotel. The Board is uncertain when the Yellow Vest Movement, labour
strike and coronavirus disease will come to an eventual end. The Board
expects that the performance of the Paris Marriott Hotel will continue
to decline in 2020. As at the date of this report, the European Union
announced plans for a 30-day ban on non-essential travel into the bloc
by non-European Union citizens from 17 March 2020 in an attempt to
contain the novel coronavirus disease. In view of such policy and in line
with the recent various measures announced by the French government,
and after due and careful consideration by the management of the Group,
the Paris Marriott Hotel will be temporarily closed until 15 April 2020
subject to the then circumstances. The coronavirus disease is expected
to have adverse impact on the hotel operation of the Group, but it is
still premature to assess or estimate the overall impact. The Group will
continue to monitor the development of the coronavirus disease and
assess its impact on the operations and financial performance of the
Group.

The Paris Marriott Hotel is actively facilitating and enhancing booking
from tourists around the world, the Board is planning to undergo
renovation project on all guest rooms and selected public areas of the
Paris Marriott Hotel (the “Hotel Renovation”). The Hotel Renovation, if
proceeded, is planning to be carried out during the end of 2020 and
until the end of 2023. The Hotel Renovation is planning to be conducted
in phases, whereas the operation of the Paris Marriott Hotel will not be
terminated during the renovation. The Paris Marriott Hotel will do its best
to ensure the guests will not be disturbed during the Hotel Renovation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money Lending

The Board considers Hong Kong's mortgage loan market will remain
challenging, being heavily competitive with uncertain prospects. The
occurrence of the social event and outbreak of the coronavirus disease in
Hong Kong and worldwide had posted undue pressure upon domestic
property prices. The performance of this segment is dependent on the
amount of successful loans granted to the borrowers and general market
interest rate trend. The Board would exercise utmost caution when
conducting mortgage loan business in Hong Kong.

Equity Investment

The Board holds an optimistic view in the prospect of the chemical
industry in the PRC, as it is projected that the PRC's chemical industry
will provide over half of the global chemical industry’s growth over
the coming decade. The Board also expects that the Target Group will
benefit from the enforcement of higher environmental standards for the
chemical industry in the PRC.

The commercial production of the first phase project of the Target
Company was originally targeted in the second quarter of 2020. As the
result of the outbreak of the coronavirus disease in the PRC, delay of the
commencement of commercial production is expected. The Board will
closely monitor the progress of the project development.

LOOKING AHEAD

The Board will concurrently review the Group's portfolio to restructure
and enhance the quality of assets held. The Board will also continue to
explore investment opportunities from new business segments with a
view to enhancing and improving returns to the Company’s stakeholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2019, total assets and net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$4,210.1 million and HK$2,422.8 million respectively
(31 December 2018: approximately HK$4,339.2 million and HK$2,496.0
million, respectively). The cash and bank balance of the Group as at
1 December 2019 were approximately HKS$1,237.2 million, and were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Euro, United States dollar and
Renminbi (31 December 2018: approximately HK$1,097.6 million).
The total current assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019 were
approximately HK$1,360.1 million (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$1,379.3 million). As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HKS$1,291.4 million (31 December 2018: net
current liabilities of approximately HK$223.8 million). The Group adopted
a conservative treasury approach and had tight control over its cash
management. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had outstanding bank
loans and other borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,481.0
million' (31 December 2018: approximately HK$1,534.8 million), none
of which (31 December 2018: approximately HK$1,534.8 million) were
due within one year. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio
(total borrowings/total assets) was at approximately 35.2% (31 December
2018: approximately 35.4%). The Group constantly monitors its cash flow
position, maturity profile of borrowings, availability of banking facilities,
gearing ratio, and interest rate exposure.

(1) Approximately HK$1,481.0 million (equivalent to €175,000,000) at the
interest rate of 3 months EURIBOR plus 2.2% per annum.

1 O Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019

7)|b§.b§$& ji%ﬁ/ﬁ
Eé_;f—jmiqL:ﬂ:Jr—El  AEEZEBE
BEKNKEEFES R A£4,210,100,000% 7T K&
2422800000,%75(_"—)\¢+ A=4+—
2 Bl 494,339,200,000 7% 7T & 2,496,000,000
;"ér‘c) CTHRZE—NAF+ZA=+—H 'K
EE 2R e KIRIT 4 82 53 #91,237,200,000 4
T BEUAETT BB ELRAREHEC
T—-NEFE+ZA=+T—H : #1,097,600,000
EL) R-_ZT—hAE+_A=+—8 £&
B2 REEEEER1,360,100000% 7T (=
:=—)\¢+ A=-+—H : #71,379,300,000
BL) c RZZE—AEF+-_A=+—8 4%
lzmébéfﬁfh@%ﬁ%iﬁ ,291,400,0007% 7T ( =
T-N\FE+_A=+—H: RBHEABEFEN
223,800,000 L) - AEBEFENEFEN KA
H UTEHRRERRSER - R _T—NF+
“AZ+—8 AEEZAREERTERK
H b (& E A 491,481,000,0007 I L%—)\i
+—H:+—EI © #91,534,800,000/8 7T ) &
BEAR—FREERE(ZE—N\F+_A=1+—
: #91,534,800,0008 L) c R=ZZE—NLF+
:H:+—EI AEBEEBBLLR(MBE
&/ BERE) BB 2%(—E—N\E+_-A
=+—H : #354%) ° $EIT%%E%%?EEE$
5ﬁ§'|$° CEBEZESER  BREBTRE
EDR é?‘@stﬁ&?‘ru?ﬂﬁw °

(1 #91,481,000,000 7% 7T (48 & 7 175,000,000 BX
BI)I2FEBERAE=EAABTEBITRIZERE
D22 o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the Year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire 30.875% equity interest of
the Target Company at the consideration of RMB12.35 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$13.7 million) (the “Transaction”). The Group also
entered into the Shareholders Agreement with the other shareholders
of the Target Company, pursuant to which, the Group undertook to
provide the Funding Commitment, the maximum amount of which shall
be RMB180.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$199.4 million),
to the Target Company for the purpose of funding the first phase of
the production facilities and office on a land parcel situated in Tieying
Chemical Industry Park of Laoling City in Shangdong Province, the PRC*
(LB EEmELE(L TEE). The Group was interested in 6.25%
equity interest of the Target Company before the Transaction. The
Group will be interested in 37.125% of the equity interest of the Target
Company upon completion of the Transaction. The Transaction and the
Funding Commitment (as aggregated) constituted a major transaction
of the Company. A special general meeting was held on 12 December
2019 and had approved the Group entering into the Transaction and the
Shareholders Agreement. Completion of the Transaction took place on 3
March 2020. For details of the Transaction and the Funding Commitment,
please refer to the circular of the Company published on 26 November
2019.

Save for the above, the Group had no other material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group had operations in France, Luxembourg, the PRC and Hong
Kong where transactions and cash flow were denominated in local
currencies, including Euro, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar. As a result,
the Group was exposed to foreign currency exposures with respect
to Euro and Renminbi, which mainly occurred from conducting daily
operations and financing activities by local offices where local currencies
were different from the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group had not entered into any forward contracts to hedge the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group managed its foreign exchange risks by
performing regular review and monitoring of foreign exchange exposure.
The Group would consider employing foreign exchange hedging
arrangements when appropriate and necessary.

*  Foridentification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, cash deposits amounting to approximately
HK$38.8 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$23.0 million) and
a building of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,775.7 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$2,873.4 million)
were pledged to secure bank loan granted to the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

The Group had 7 employees as at 31 December 2019 (31 December
2018: 7). The total employee remuneration during the Year was
approximately HK$8.5 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$8.5
million). Remuneration policies were reviewed regularly to ensure that
compensation and benefits packages were in line with the market level. In
addition to basic remuneration, the Group also provided other employee
benefits including bonuses, mandatory provident fund scheme, medical
insurance scheme and participation to the share option scheme.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xue Jian, aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive Director on
7 January 2009. Mr. Xue was re-designated as an executive Director
on 6 January 2011, and appointed as chief executive officer on 1 June
2016. Mr. Xue also serves as director to a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Xue received his master’s degree in business administration
from Zhongnan University of Finance, Economics, Politics and Law.
Mr. Xue has over two decades of experience in the steelmaking industry
and in the commercial sector in the PRC. He was the legal representative
of Rizhao Steel Co., Limited*, and is a director of Rizhao Steel Holding
Group Co., Limited*. The Rizhao Steel group of companies is one of the
largest private steel makers in the PRC. Mr. Xue has also been appointed
as the supervisor of Jinghua Rigang Holding Group Co, Limited*.

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director on 18 May 2011. He has also been appointed as members of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
as well as chief financial officer, process agent and company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Law also serves as director, company secretary and
legal representative to a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Law
has extensive experience in financial management and professional
accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Law was the chief financial
officer of Diamondlite Group, one of the leading jewelry manufacturers
in the PRC. Having started his career as a professional accountant in an
international accountancy firm, Mr. Law has undertaken key financial
management positions in companies engaged in a variety of industries.
Mr. Law is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a bachelor of arts degree in Accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Law is also appointed as an
independent non-executive director of KML Technology Group Limited,
the issued shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) (Stock
Code: 8065).

*  Foridentification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam Sun Wing, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 14 December 2001. He has also been
appointed as chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee, and the member of the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Tam is a professional accountant with more than 30 years
of extensive audit and business advisory experience. Mr. Tam is practicing
as a director of FTW & Partners CPA Limited. Mr. Tam is also a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, and also registered as a Certified Tax Advisor.
Mr. Tam holds a Master Degree of Science in Corporate Governance and
Directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Mr. Ng Ge Bun, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 September 2004. He has also been
appointed as member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee and chairman of the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Ng holds the degree in bachelor of science and degree in bachelor in
laws. He obtained a postgraduate certificate in laws from The University of
Hong Kong. He is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong and currently
serves as a consultant of Tang, Lai & Leung Solicitors.

Mr. He Yi, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 18 May 2011. He has been appointed as member of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. He is the chief executive officer of
Shanghai YAOXIN Asset Investment and Management Limited. Prior
to this, he was the general manager of Barclays Bank Shanghai Branch
and has extensive experience in the financial industry. Mr. He started
his career with the Credit Agricole Indosuez in Shanghai and was the
head of treasury department and financial institutions department of
First Sino Bank, the head of global markets China and deputy general
manager of the Shanghai branch of Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited. Mr. He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a certified economist accredited by The Ministry
of Personnel of China. Mr. He holds a postgraduate master degree of
economics from Fudan University, Shanghai, China. Mr. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Sunshine Oilsands Limited, the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
2012).
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The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance. Continuous efforts
are made to review and enhance the Group's internal control policy and
procedures in light of local and international developments to instill best
practices.

The Board has set up procedures on corporate governance that comply
with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) on corporate governance
practices based on the principles and code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”") contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

The Company had complied with the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 with the following
deviations:

A.4.1 Non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
term. They are, however, subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
pursuant to the Company'’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”). As such, the
Company considers that such provisions are sufficient to meet the
underlying objectives of the relevant provisions of the CG Code.

A.4.2 The Chairman is not, whilst holding such office, subject
to retirement by rotation or taken into account in determining
the number of Directors to retire in each year in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In the opinion of the Board, it is
important for the stability and growth of the Company that there
is, and is seen to be, continuity of leadership in this role and, in
consequence, the Board is of the view that the Chairman should
not be subject to retirement by rotation or hold office for a limited
term at the present time.

E.1.2 As set out in the announcement of the Company dated
29 March 2019, the Company has been unable to reach Dr. Li
Zhigiang, the chairman of the Board. Dr. Li Zhigiang did not
attend the annual general meeting of the Company. An executive
Director, Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen was elected to chair the
annual general meeting held on 22 May 2019 in accordance with
the Bye-laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARES

The Board will keep these matters under review.

Following sustained development and growth of the Company, we will
continue to monitor and revise the Company’s corporate governance
policies in order to ensure that such policies meet the general rules and
standards required by the shareholders of the Company.

After the expiration of the service term of Dr. Li Zhigiang as Chairman of
the Board on 22 May 2019, no replacement in relation thereto has been
made by the Board. The Company will publish an announcement once an
appointment has been made in accordance with the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
The Company, having made specific enquiry, has confirmed with the
Directors that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.

THE BOARD AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

The Board is responsible for directing the strategic objectives of the
Group and overseeing the management of the business. The Directors are
responsible for leadership and control of the Group. The overall corporate
governance structure of the Company is depicted in the following chart:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD

(R)

(B)

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, serving the important
function of guiding the management.

The Board members during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Dr. Li Zhigiang (Chairman)
(service term expired on 22 May 2019)
Mr. Xue Jian (CEO)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship) among the Directors.
All Directors are not appointed for a specific term. Although
all Directors are not appointed for a specific term, all Directors,
except the Chairman, are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
pursuant to the Bye-laws.

ROLE AND FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic business
development, reviewing and monitoring the business
performance of the Group, as well as preparing and approving
financial statements. The Directors, collectively and individually,
are aware of their responsibilities to shareholders, for the manner
in which the affairs of the Company are managed and operated.
In the appropriate circumstances and as and when necessary, the
Directors will consent to the seeking of independent professional
advice at the Group's expense, ensuring that board procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions
of the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where the management should report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board will review
those arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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The Board has the full support from the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities. Appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors’ and officers' liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries
arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged
by the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board had held
meetings and discussed the following the issues:

1 reviewed the internal control system and risk
management of the Group;

2 discussed the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and the interim results of the
Group for the period ended 30 June 2019 respectively;

3 considered the recommendation of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and the book close
period, if any;

4 proposed re-election of the Directors;

5 proposed the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the

auditors of the Company, and discussed the auditors’
remuneration for the annual audit;

6 reviewed the effects on the changes of the accounting
standards and principles;

7 proposed the general mandates to issue and repurchase
shares of the Company;

8 approved the grant of mortgage loan to the borrower of
the money lending segment; and

9 approved the sale and purchase agreement in relation to

the acquisition of 30.875% of the equity interest of the
Target Company and the shareholders’ agreement.
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There were in total nine Board meetings and general meetings REBEE-_ZEZE—NhE+-_A=1+—H81

held for the year ended 31 December 2019. FE - AHBEOTHAARESZEEZR
RERE -

The following set out the attendance record of Board meetings LTHIFEFRNBTZEETS2EN

and general meetings held during the Year: EEAXe 7 HEHE

Attendance for meeting
for the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-F-NF+=-A=+—H

ILEEZERHER
Board members Board Meetings General Meetings
EEERE Exees RERXE
Dr. Li Zhigiang 0/3 0/1
(service term expired on 22 May 2019)
FEBREL
(FHR=_Z—NAERA=+=BER)
Mr. Xue Jian 6/7 0/2
BElRSE A
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen 7/7 2/2
BKETE
Mr. Tam Sun Wing 6/7 0/2
EHR T
Mr. Ng Ge Bun 7/7 2/2
REW KL
Mr. He Yi 7/7 2/2
BOkAE
There were one annual general meeting and one special general IR R =SS = H S—E 1k
meeting held for the year ended 31 December 2019. B BRIT-RARRBFAGR—
RBEREFRIAS -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREARES

(D)

(E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board had at
all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents
of such confirmation, the Company considers that the three
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate
governance policy and performing the corporate governance
duties including the followings:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules (CG Code and Corporate Governance
Report).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(F) DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
The Directors are committed to participate in continuous
professional development. The Directors are regularly briefed
on amendments and updates on the relevant laws, rules and
regulations.

The Company has arranged, and all Directors namely, Mr. Xue Jian,
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, Mr. Tam Sun Wing, Mr. Ng Ge Bun
and Mr. He Yi have enrolled and attended relevant professional
development courses to assist the Directors in discharging their
duties. The Company has also arranged presentations to the
Directors that are conducted by external professional bodies
in relation to updates and developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime of the Group’s business and the business
environment.

(GQ) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group, and to report on material
uncertainties, if any, relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue preparing
the accounts on a going concern basis. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or condition
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue preparing the financial statements on the assumption
that the Group will continue as going concern.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The division of the responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer is clearly established. The Chairman provides leadership
for the Board and the Chief Executive Officer has overall chief executive
responsibility for the Group's business development and day-to-day
management generally.

After the expiration of the service term of Dr. Li Zhigiang as Chairman of
the Board on 22 May 2019, no replacement in relation thereto has been
made by the Board. The Company will publish an announcement once an
appointment has been made in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Subsequently, the responsibilities of the Chairman has been shared by the
executive Directors during the Year.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Group adopted a board diversity policy. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance. The Board also sees diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. In forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will
also take into account of factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidate will bring to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has also established the following committees with defined
terms of reference:

Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee
Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its term of
reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms of reference as well
as the structure and membership of each committee will be reviewed
from time to time.

(A) AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established on 14 December 2001. It
currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors.

Composition of Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2019 was as follow:

Mr. Tam Sun Wing (Chairman)
Mr. He Yi
Mr. Ng Ge Bun
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Role and function

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for:

m

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to discuss with the auditors the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commences;

to review the Company’s annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
report before submission to the Board, focusing
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with the management to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have an effective
systems. This discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions;
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The Audit Committee met two times during the Year to discuss ERZEERFASRTRAREE -

and approve the interim and annual results, and to review the DR Rt ER B R 2FEEE - Wig

internal control procedures of the Group. SRR E NEEEIEIR T o

The attendance record of Audit Committee meetings held for the EnZeagenNH8E2_—NF+=A

year ended 31 December 2019 is as follows: = t-BLEFEMBRTERIEFR
BRI -

Attendance for meetings held for

the year ended 31 December 2019
Committee member BE-ZE-hE+-A=+—BLFE
EEERE FrBfTaEdctiER

Mr. Tam Sun Wing 2/2
BRI

Mr. He Yi 2/2
BOESE

Mr. Ng Ge Bun 2/2
REWTE

i3

b ERZEEEHW MIFER:

During the meetings, the Audit Committee discussed the
following matters:

(1) Financial Reporting (1) B AR
The Audit Committee met with the external auditors to EZZE S D EI R ER SR
discuss the interim and annual financial statements and TEE IRAEBZHHR
system of internal control of the Group. The auditors 2 EEREK A KA EB EE 12
and the chief financial officer were also in attendance to € o M ERMBGRETAH
answer questions on the financial results. e UREEBENBES
Z%FDEJ i
Where there were questions on the financial statements MEZZEERETERIE
and system of control of the Group reviewed by the Audit RS AREE B BmEk kA
Committee, the management of the Company would EmblEEERE  AARE
provide breakdown, analysis and supporting documents BE#RNEZZESNERMH
to the Audit Committee members in order to ensure that AR - T REEXH
the Audit Committee members were fully satisfied and EREZEZESKETE2EH
make proper recommendation to the Board. WREESEHBESEE -
2) External Auditors (2)  SMEERZEED

The appointment of the external auditors and the BEZEBSEEEINEZEE
audit fee were considered by the Audit Committee CEREEZHEERASEE I
and recommendations were made to the Board on the B RA R RIINEZBAD 2 T
selection of external auditors of the Company. The Audit EEMESSELESR -  BX
Committee had also discussed on auditor’s independence, EEENERZEBM2E L
objectivity and effectiveness of audit process. M RBUNAREZREF A

MIEEIT R

(3)  Internal Control 3) A BB 1
Review of the sufficiency and efficiency of the internal T R B0 ES ) E R R b I
control system and risk management. EERHAREBERE -

24 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



(B)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 March
2005. It currently consists of one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Composition of the Remuneration Committee for the year ended
1 December 2019:

Mr. Tam Sun Wing (Chairman)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

Role and function
The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for:

reviewing any significant changes in human resources
policies and structure made in line with the then
prevailing trend and business requirements;

making recommendations to the Board on the Group's
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

considering factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration;

reviewing and approve performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time;
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6y reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms
and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not
excessive for the Company;

7. reviewing and approving compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct
to ensure that such arrangements are determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that
any compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

8. ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

9. advising the shareholders on how to vote in respect of
any service contract of Director which shall be subject
to the approval of shareholders (in accordance with the
provisions of Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules).

Where circumstances are considered appropriate, some
Remuneration Committee decisions are approved by way of
written resolutions passed by all the Remuneration Committee
members.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held and the attendance record is as
follow:

Committee member
EZEEGRE

REE-_FT-NEF+-_A=t+—HLE
FE FHRESERITMAER -
BReRZhFmEEmT

Attendance for meetings held for

the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+-A=+—-HLFE
FREfTERZHER

Mr. Tam Sun Wing
IR

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
BXERE

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

REW KL

Mr. He Yi

BRAE

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management
with reference to the prevailing market conditions. The
Remuneration Committee had also discussed the remuneration
policy and performance assessment for executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 April
2007. It currently consists of one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors.

Composition of the Nomination Committee for the year ended
31 December 2019:

Mr. Ng Ge Bun (Chairman)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen
Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. He Yi

1/2

1/2

2/2

2/2
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Role and function

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference includes those
specific duties as set out in the code provision A.5.2 of the
CG Code. Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Nomination
Committee is required, amongst other things, to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations for changes as necessary, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships, to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, and to make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. The Nomination Committee should meet at
least once a year and when the need arises.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying,
recruiting and evaluating new nominees to the Board and the
assessment of the qualifications of the Directors. The criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship
includes the candidate’s experience, professional knowledge,
integrity, time commitment and other statutory or regulatory
requirements.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy stating the key
nomination criteria and principles during nomination of Directors.
In identifying suitable candidates qualified to become Board
members, the Nomination Committee shall take into account
the Company’s current or future business model and specific
needs, the challenges and opportunities of the Company will
face, and skill set and expertise of candidates are required. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the candidates on merit
and contribution the candidate will bring to the Board with due
regard to the board diversity policy of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, one Nomination Committee
meetings was held and the attendance record was as follows:

Committee member

ZEERE

RBE_ZT-—NF+_A=+—HLFE"
RA /\/;l\éﬁgh'_//\%’ﬁﬁ ElgZ 2
fERERIAT :

Attendance for meetings held for

the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_Z-NF+-A=T-HLEE
FREfTERZHER

Mr. Ng Ge Bun
REWEE

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

BKERE

Mr. Tam Sun Wing

BHTERSE

Mr. He Yi

BOESE

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board, it had also discussed the policy for nomination
of Directors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to safeguard shareholder’s interest.
To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogue with shareholders
to communicate with them and encourage their participation through
annual general meetings or other general meetings.

Registered shareholders are notified by post for the shareholders’
meetings. The notice of meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and a postal voting form.

Any duly registered shareholder from time to time is entitled to attend
the annual and special general meetings, provided that their shares have
been recorded in the Register of Members (Bye-law 66).

Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting may complete
and return to the Share Registrar the proxy form enclosed with the notice
of meeting to give proxy to their representatives, another shareholder or
Chairman of the meetings.

Shareholders or investors can send their enquiries to the Company
through the following means:

Hotline number : (852) 2804-2221

By post . 28th Floor, Chinachem Century Tower,

178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholder(s) can by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company to require a special general meeting be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. To raise
such requisition, the shareholder(s) must have held at the date of deposit
of such requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying right to vote at general meetings of the Company
(Bye-law 58).

The meeting so requisitioned shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
requisition deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with section 74(3)
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (Bye-law 58).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

The Company Secretary of Kai Yuan Holdings Limited

28th Floor, Chinachem Century Tower, 178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Email . enquiry@kaiyuanholdings.com

Telephone number : (852) 2804-2221

Facsimile number : (852) 2723-8571

The company secretary will forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Subject to Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, it shall be
the duty of the Company, on the requisition in writing of (i) either any
number of members representing not less than one twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (i) not less
than one hundred members, at the expense of the requisitionists unless
the Company otherwise resolves:

(a) to give to members of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and

(b) to circulate to members entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

Subject to Section 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of the Bermuda, notice
of any such intended resolution duly signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned (the requisitionist(s)), shall be deposited at the registered
office of the Company not less than six weeks before the meeting (in
the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less
than one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in sending the notice and circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder concerned.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements in accordance with the
requirements under the provisions as stated in Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

TEERARES

BRRABRRASREZBZZEF

EREBRE(—NN—FRENE)E7MKZ
BMET  BIEARRBITRR  TRIARR
FEWE )R DRIEZBERKERDN A BEETE
ZERERNGRE LR AN ERENER
REZ D7 —HRBREAZ i) TP R100
HREBEHEMBREER  EERHBRAZ
HEBRMBRAT  BEME:

@ MAERKRTERRBEFASBEHN
NEBRREFELBEN  AREHEALES
EZE@ LREnSRLREZER
EERBEOEIRER &

(b) RAREAIASBENBRREM—
MFHETZRN100FHRMEE - AR
FREEMEZERERAMELNSE
H EBEREZXER LEENER -

ENEARE(-AN—FRFE) Fo0FZ
BRET  ENEHEERDBZRABRALHEBR
RFBERANBBZBAN AR TARFERXE
ARAWEMPER - WBERBELRER
BANFERE  EAEREERBITATLR6ME
BN MBEAEMFELE  REEHESH
[ITHAPEZY  ER—FHER AR
NARARR/BEHZBAREHNBBARRER
ZPRAE T EE LR FI ST HOFRIR -

RKRBBEREBERER  ARREREERE
C—NAN—FREE) B7ME R FESOEZIEX
HCHRBUAZTE RIEE FTE L8k -

BRIERERAR | 2000 £58 31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREARES

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

It is the auditors’ responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those financial statements and to report their opinion
solely to the Company, as a body, in accordance with the Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
auditors’ report.

Apart from the provision of annual audit services, the Group’s external
auditors also provided interim review of the Group’s results and taxation
advisory service to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Ernst & Young, the external
auditors provided the following services to the Group:

BB &

BB BEEDRBEERTE2AR 8
MBRRERBILER - URBRAAEDZ
ME - RAARRBHERBEBERSE - BRiL 25
ZWMETAREEMAR - ZBEAH TS5
RHMBEEIARHTMEMALA EX
EEEMELL -

BEFREBZRBI - AEBEINBZED
NEHAEE 2P MRS Y RAEEREHR

WS ok s AR A o

RBE-F—NAF+-A=+—AILFE
SN BN R AR 3 DB A B AR EIR
BT BRES

Ernst & Young
R EH
HKS$'000

T

B RT
55 AR %%
BXR

Audit services
Taxation services
Professional services

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Audit Committee assisted the Board to perform its duties to maintain
effective and sound internal control system for the Group. The Audit
Committee reviewed the Group's procedures and workflow for the
financial, operational and compliance, and also the risk assessment and its
initiatives for business risks management and control. Recommendations
will also be put forward to the Board for consideration and approval.
The Group has an internal audit function. During the Year, the Company
engaged an independent internal control consultant to carry out review
on risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
review report had been presented to the Audit Committee to review, and
nothing has come to the Audit Committee’s or the Board's attention to
believe that risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are inadequate or ineffective. Please refer to the section headed “Risk
Management and Internal Control Report” for further details.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR

THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities and the Company has
established a policy on the handling and dissemination of inside
information (“Inside Information”). The inside information policy concerns
the handling and the dissemination of the Inside Information as follows:

Handling of Inside Information

1. an officer of the Company with appropriate skills has been
assigned to identify any potential Inside Information and to
escalate any such Inside Information to the attention of the Board;

2. the Company should, as soon as reasonably practicable after
any Inside Information has come to our knowledge, disclose the
Inside Information to the public, unless the Inside Information falls
within any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance; and

3. before the Inside Information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company should ensure that the Inside Information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Board believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Company should immediately disclose
the Inside Information to the public.

Dissemination of Inside Information

Inside Information will be announced promptly through the websites
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.com.hk) and the Company
(www.kaiyuanholdings.com).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen, the company secretary for the year ended
31 December 2019, was a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company'’s affairs. The company secretary
reports to the Board and has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

TEERBES

FREERBHAREEZRFR
PR B 122

EZeRREBAEREREMARBHEE
(FW%H%\J) $ATE%H;&EE§E€@&
BMARBEEZBER - BREREMARHE
EABARBBBEREIINT:

BREARHEE

1. K’“ﬂaéiﬁﬂﬁ BREZEHEA
BRERANEMEEARES L
EHEZ%W%/#%J:#&§$§JEE¥ ;

2. RABARMEBEAABEREL &
EEATHEARRACREER M
NEHE BENABAREEBES
R GROIMRE 2 ERNZ2EEE
MAERIN © R

3. AAREEEEARHESA - ARF
BERARBERYRT - MEFS
RRBLIERAFENRTREE - XX
BRAREZEMZHAENGRCEER B
RARARANKAARKEEEAR

/ﬁ/%\ °
BREHE
AN EHEE ﬂ—riﬁﬁ—r}ﬁi@%‘ﬁiﬁﬁmﬁﬁ
(www.hkexnews.com.hk) & A& 2 @ 4
(www.kaiyuanholdings.com) A °
’_\ﬁﬁf\i
E’\%i —NEFE+=ZA=+—BLEE -

Twi$% EETDARRZEBES -
ERBARRZATER - RalMEMES
eER WEAEEBEXTLRTR/DEZHE
g%im EJ | =

BRIERAERAR | 2000 F5% 33



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREARES

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

To enhance its transparency, the Company encourages dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts. Extensive information about the
Company'’s activities is provided in its interim and annual reports, which
are sent to shareholders, analysts and interested parties. The Company
also maintains regular communication with the media. The Company’s
news releases, announcements and publications are circulated timely,
to all major news media. The same materials are also available on the
Company’s website. Media briefings are organized from time to time
to relay details of the Group's latest business initiatives and market

REERE
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AR BN AL BAL

RIBIBERAE ARAREGREARBREER
DMEBBE - PHRERFREGAAAE
BZHEEN  AFRARSEFETRE -2
TrEREERBET - KRR MEERRTE
HER - ARAEQBERAMA X ZHER
BEBHER  2EETY - BAEHIRA
RARBZWUBE - KRR TRE|ITEL
BHRE  BEREAKEZEHEBE LTS
WRAR - ARFERBREERSITEE

development plans. Regular meetings are also held with institutional Hiem  NERERAEBNEBER 2B
investors and analysts to disseminate financial and other information BREMER - ﬁt#/éi)j/\/‘mﬂ%&$%

related to the Group and its business. These activities keep the public ZEBWIRERYER

aware of the Group's activities and foster effective communication.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the following shareholders RNEBEE—"ZE—hLE+_B=+—HIEE -

meetings were held by the Company: KRB GRITUATHREARS ¢
Date Venue Type of Meeting Particulars Voting at Meeting
= 2 eRER FiE SEFETRR
22 May 2019 Board Room, Level 1 Annual General Meeting 1. To receive and consider audited financial By Poll

South Pacific Hotel,
23 Morrison Hill Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the corresponding
reports of the Directors and auditors

2. To re-elect Directors and to authorise the
Board to fix their remuneration

3. To re-appoint Ernst & Young as the auditors
of the Company and authorise the Board to
fix their remuneration

4, To approve the general mandates to issue
and repurchase shares of the Company

—E-NE BRELT BRBFAE 1. FEBE_T-\Ft_A=1t-H &ERERESA
FAZ+ZA IR B2 11138235 HEEZREGHBRREEHEEE KR

BABE BEELRBOREE

=

2 ERESNAHESSETAMS

3 BRELKGHAEHM AR RZHE
rREEZEETEME

4. BAERTRBEARARN 2 —REKE
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1F % B /A $& ==
Date Venue Type of Meeting Particulars Voting at Meeting
= B ezga #f5 SLETRR
12 December 2019 Board Room, Level 1 Special General Meeting 1. To approve the acquisition of 30.875% By Poll

South Pacific Hotel,
23 Morrison Hill Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

2.
—E-hEF BBEF BREFAE 1.
+-A+=H R |L13E23%

BEER

—EXHE 2.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR FOR 2020

Event

=4

equity interest of the Target Company
and the shareholders’ agreement

To approve and to enter into agreement
dated 22 October 2019

AR BZRER0875%RIERGERE BREKREFRA

& KR

HAEYITVEHA-T-NFTA
“t+ZBZiBE

—EEFHRBHERE

Proposed Date
EEETAS

Announcement of 2019 annual results

IME_E-NFE2EER

Annual General Meeting

BERIBERE

Announcement of 2020 interim results

NME—T_TFRHEE

Late March 2020
ZETF=AK

Around May 2020
—T_EFRALA

Late August 2020
—E_EFENAK
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RIZ - e RERHRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Kai Yuan Holdings Limited (the “Kai Yuan” or “Company” and its
subsidiaries (collectively refer as the “Group” or “We") are pleased to
present the 2019 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report
(the “Report”) which outlines our approaches, strategies and practices
in relation to the sustainability development. We carry out our business
in a responsible manner such that we create long-term values for our
stakeholders and contribute to make the world a better place.

This Report covered the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
(the "Reporting Period”). This Report mainly focuses on our core business
segment — hotel operation including Paris Marriott Hotel Champs-Elysées
in Paris, France (the “Hotel” or the “Paris Marriott Hotel").

This Report has been prepared in accordance with disclosure
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

We sincerely welcome your comments and suggestions with regard to
this Report and our sustainability performance. Please feel free to provide
your comments by email to enquiry@kaiyuanholdings.com.

Stakeholder engagement

Engagement with stakeholders helps us find the right direction in
sustainability. We maintain ongoing dialogues with our stakeholders
(including but not limited to hotel guests, employees, shareholders,
suppliers, community, governance and regulatory bodies) such that we
actively collect their views to boost the growth of both the Group and
benefit our stakeholders.

We identify and prioritise issues that our stakeholders consider significant
to formulate the foundation to our ESG objectives and the scope of our
ESG reporting. We communicate with our stakeholders both formally and
informally. It enables us to recognise our own strengths and weaknesses
to better sharpen our business strategies to respond to their needs
and expectations, anticipate risks and strengthen key relationships. The
information collected throughout the stakeholder engagement process
serves as an underlying basis for the structure of this Report. We will
continue to seek ways to step up our effort on stakeholder engagement
and review the effectiveness constantly.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Emissions

We recognise potential impact to the environment during the course
of our operation and are committed to operate our businesses in an
environmentally responsible manner. It is our policy to minimise emission
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. We work
closely with the hotel manager of the Hotel to restraint emission and
continuously to improve our environmental performance. The Hotel
conserves resources by reducing unnecessary waste of electricity and
water at source, and enhance environmental awareness of hotel staff and
guests by providing training, warm reminders and during our interaction
with our guests. We also communicate our policies and requirements
toward environmental protection to our contractors and suppliers to
collaborate their effort in environmental protection.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, we did not notice any non-compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharge into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

Our major source of emission includes (1) greenhouse gas which is
generated from town gas and electricity; (2) garbage generated by our
hotel guests and office; and (3) food waste generated during our food and
beverage services at the Paris Marriott Hotel.

RIR - dERERHE

A. IR

A1. BB

BMEBNBEMEEBEFEREPHIRERE
REESE  BURMAZERBRETY
FHELERE - BMMBERZNRLER
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5 ARBIRLELEEEREEREY -
RMEZEEZBESBAREEAE B
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E%  REBEEEIREAZEBRES R
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Emission Type 2019 Unit
BEmER —E-NF E
Air emissions’

BER KT

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) 2230 kg
gzl e N
Sulphur oxides (SOx) 062 [g
ey AT
Particulate matter (PM) 067 « |kg
BT 2F
! The air emission and greenhouse gas emission is calculated based on the ! BRI E R =R E IR P

methodology suggested in the “Steps for ESG Reporting — Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock
Exchange.
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R - dERERHE

Emission Type 2019 Unit
BRER —EB-NF B
Greenhouse gas emissions’
BERBHEKE
Total (Scope 1 & Scope 2) 826.59  Tonnes of CO, equivalent
wiH(BE—-REE ) WE— LI E S
Scope 1 17.70  Tonnes of CO, equivalent
&= — WE— LI E S
Scope 2 808.89  Tonnes of CO, equivalent
#E— WE bR EE
Intensity (per room night) 1434 kg of CO, equivalent/room night
ZE(BHREEZ®) AT_EREE SHETH
Intensity (per gross floor area) 46.65 kg of CO, equivalent/m?
RE(FREEE) DT ZEULIRE S Tk
Non-hazardous waste
BEZEEY
Total waste generated 1,025.15  Tonnes
FEAREZEYMEE ME
Paper 3.00  Tonnes
AR MR
Glass 32850  Tonnes
W M8
Food waste 36.65 Tonnes
BERR U7
Other general refuse 657.00  Tonnes
Hth—AREEY) U7
Intensity (per room night) 17.79  kg/room night
TR (BHET®%) R/ BEEE®%
Intensity (per gross floor area) 5786  kg/m?
RE(FEEmE) YN PN
Waste to landfill 660.00  Tonnes
BEEERRZREY 73
Waste to recycle 365.15  Tonnes
REWE M4
Note 1: We did not generate hazardous waste (as defined by regulations in Misr1 Rt EELEEEREY(EE R E

France).

Note 2: All food waste and glass bottles were collected for recycling.

Note 3: Amount of other general refuse is estimated by considering the volume of

rubbish collection bin and the frequency of collection.

! The air emission and greenhouse gas emission is calculated based on the
methodology suggested in the “Steps for ESG Reporting — Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock

Exchange.
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Rk FREBRE

Measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved WRBERENERRAERRE
Actively manage use of electricity to reduce wastes that create BREERE WA TRERER
indirect greenhouse gas emission. EREVRCEEY o
Works collaboratively with different wastes recycling partners to . HARMBEEZEYRIWASEBHEE
trim down the tonnage. BOBEMEE -
Recycle organic wastes with a bio-wastes partners to turn wastes . HEVERMEIERHSELRE K
into compost and biogas. BEEY) - BEERVMB(LKAERKE
K,
Recycle used oil, lamps, batteries, metal, plastic, glass and paper . BEENRAEU A B AE o [ Y REE
through working with different recycling companies. meRE B 28 BB BB
MR -
A2. Use of Resources A2. ERfERA
1. Energy 1. BEIR

During the course of our business, we consume an array of resources EREMEEEBNRER  BMERZREE
ranging from electricity, water, town gas to food ingredients used in B AE K ERAZARBHRBOER
our food and beverage services. It is our policy to monitor each aspect Mo RPMBEESFYERE—EAER @ &
closely to make sure we are operating in a cost effective, sustainable and REMUAETERAY R  IRFEERERER
responsible manner. During the Reporting Period, we have improved EOTALERT - EREHEAN - BBE
our energy management by implementing a number of energy saving )j@—,%}ﬂjﬁﬁﬁ& ab’m%@ftéﬁﬁ ER - &M

initiatives to optimize our usage of resources: EZT RS
Resource Type 2019  Unit
ERER —E-hF EBEf
Energy consumption
FEEEE
In total 5,918,639.43 kWh
st F B
In electricity 2,206,434.00  kWh
B TR
In steam production 212724400  kWh
EKREE FEBS
In chilled water 1,538,000.00  kWh
=K FRE
In non-renewable fuel 46,961.43  kWh
SER A TR
Intensity (per room night) 102.71  kWh/room night
ZE(BRES®) TRE BHES®
Intensity (per gross floor area) 33403  kWh/m?
EE(SRERE) FRE,FHAK
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R HERERHRE

Energy efficiency initiatives and results achieved
Turn off unnecessary lighting and air-conditioning.

Educate and inspire associates and guests to conserve and

preserve.

Set and maintain standard indoor temperature.

Review regularly our environmental policy and energy saving

plan.

Closely monitor on energy consumption pattern and take

necessary actions if irregular usage is noticed.

Motion detectors are installed in back office area, public area
restrooms and meeting rooms. LED lightings are installed at back
offices and LED motion sensor lightings are installed in parking

staircase.

Programmable thermostats are adopted in guest rooms and

meeting facilities.

Window sensors were installed in all guest rooms to switch off

air-conditioning system when windows are opened.

2. Water

Water is a basic necessity to all livings on earth but our access to water is
limited. With rapid growth in global population and urbanization, water
management is crucial to maintain our sustainability. For this reason, it is
our policy to upholding best practices on water management throughout
our operations. During the Reporting Period, we have improved our water
management by implementing a number of water-saving initiatives to

optimize our usage of resources:

EReBERFTBRAE
TS ENEE TR -
HENEBHEATREABRED
HRE o
RERRFEEEARE °
TE AR AT IR IR R M Ef g AT & o

FUERHEEEN  URBBRILEE
HASRIREATEITH -
R E - AREEFER
CRELTEINIERAE - EREEM
ZRIDEBUREFEESESRTE
LEDENMERVBIELE ©
FRERERGZRERATREN (BT
%%o

ERERER %‘)5”?)? LR E
FTREFRER R4 -

2.7k

KERZHIR EFTEEYNERTE - BE
MAURANRAKIEEER - BE2KARD
SHRER - MESBTENSERER - KER
ERHRFRMOUIBEZREWUEE - F
R BRPINBERREEBEERRES
BIFKEREEZRETR - RHTEHME
N EBRE— RN RKEELAEE
TREVER - BRMEATRKERER :

Resource Type 2019 Unit

ERER —EB-hEF B

Water consumption 2351700 m?

FEKE AV
Intensity (per room night) 041  m3*room night
ZE(BREE®) MK/ BEEEY
Intensity (per gross floor area) 138 me/mP
ZE(FRERE) SHRFFK

Chilled water for cooling system 186,693.00 m?3

R AR BEPTE A2 K AV B/
Intensity (per room night) 3.24  m?*room night
mE(SHRET%) MHEKR/ EREE®R
Intensity (per gross floor area) 10.54 m3/m?
mE(BEEmE) SHRFFK
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Water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
Encouraging guests to save water and reuse linen and towel
during their stay.
Close monitoring on water consumption pattern and take
necessary actions if irregular usage is noticed.
Adoption of low-flow water faucets in guest rooms and common
areas.
Introduction of low-flow showerheads and tap aerators in all
guest bathrooms.
Installation of water-efficient commercial dishwasher and washing
machines (except the washing machine in the kitchen).
Installation of low-flow pre-risen spray valves in kitchen.

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources
We did not notice our operations have significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

B. SOCIAL

B1. Employment

As at 31 December 2019, we had seven employees working in Hong
Kong and Luxembourg. Employees working in our hotel (“hotel staff”) are
employed and managed by the third party hotel manager. However, we
work closely with hotel manager to ensure they have consistent policies
with us in handling employee matters and compliant with all relevant
laws and regulations in the area in which the Hotel operates.

It is our policy to value the differences between people and work
diligently in providing equal opportunity and anti-discrimination. Our
employment decision is only based on one’s working ability and disregard
their gender, race, ethnicity, sexual orientation, disability, etc. We review
our remuneration policies and packages annually to ensure our employee
are fairly treated. We grant discretionary bonuses to qualified employees
based on operation results and individual performance. Our employees
are also entitled to medical insurance, participation in the mandatory
provident fund and paid leaves.

Compliance

We were not aware of any material non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, other
benefits and welfare, occupational health and safety, child and forced
labour and other laws and regulations related to employment during the
Reporting Period.
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RIR - HERERHE

B2. Health and safety

We believe that productivity comes from healthy workforce. It is our
policy to provide a healthy and safe working environment for our
employees. We remind our employees to increase their awareness in
occupational safety, provide them comfortable working environment and
medical benefit.

Compliance
During the Reporting Period, no work related fatalities or injuries were
recorded.

B3. Development and training

It is our policy that all new employees are required to attend orientation
training to ensure that they are familiar with our corporate values and
goals and to ensure that the employees understand their role in the
Group. Employees are also encouraged to attend seminars relevant to
their position to enhance their work capability.

B4. Labour standards

It is our policy that we are against the usage of child and forced labour.
Our recruitment policy forbids the hiring of child or forced labour and we
will not purchase from any supplier who is doing so.

Compliance
There was no usage of child and forced labour noticed during the
Reporting Period.

B5. Supply chain management

Hotel operation involves a number of procurement categories including
furniture, fixtures and equipment, hotel amenities, ingredient for food
and beverages, office supplies and different kinds of maintenance
and professional services. It is our policy to ensure our suppliers are
operating in a sustainable manner, therefore, we work closely with the
hotel manager to ensure responsible procurement is in place which is
consistent with our approach to sustainability.
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The Paris Marriott Hotel has in place a clear Supplier Code of Conduct and
Sustainability Assessment Program to provide environmental and social
guidelines to their suppliers, they work closely to push and encourage
their suppliers to ensure the Supplier’s Sustainability Policies are followed.
In environmental aspect, the Paris Marriott Hotel has followed Marriott
International’s initiatives such as removing injected molded foam
products, use sustainable seafood, use cage-free eggs, use pork free
from gestation confinement crates for pork, ensuring down and feather
products are from humane sources. Regarding social aspects, the Paris
Marriott Hotel follows Marriott's Global Employment and Human Rights
principles and expect their suppliers to have safe and secure working
environments, non-discrimination, avoid using forced and child labour.
Supplier Screening Program is in place to monitor their suppliers to work
in environmental and social responsible manner.

We believe that high quality service is essential to maintain long-term
relationship with our customers. It is our policy to provide services
with impeccable quality. The Hotel has in place its own “Standard
Operation Procedures” and “Quality Assurance Program” to ensure guests
satisfaction, and all hotel staff are well trained with respective standards
and procedures to deliver high quality services. Self-audit and third party
audits are performed regularly throughout the Reporting Period to ensure
the Hotel is providing the best and consistent customer experience in
terms of service, condition, cleanliness and operations standard.

Guest satisfaction

Paris Marriott Hotel is classified and recognised as a five-star hotel by the
République Francaise (French Republic) honoring its outstanding service
standards. In addition to actively collect information to understand
customer experiences and in place of complaint handling procedures,
Paris Marriott Hotel developed a guest feedback program — internally
branded “Guest Voice”. A guest satisfaction system which integrates a
shorter, simpler guest and event satisfaction survey with social media
(reviews, posts, tweets, etc.) into a single user dashboard, enabling the
hotel to take action on issues and concerns and facilitate a more timely
response.
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Guest safety

Our number one priority is to safeguard the well-being of both the
customers as well as the staff members. Surveillance cameras are installed
at hotel entrances and exits for security purpose. Our hotel operator also
conducts self-audit on operations and brand program regularly. Once
the hotel operator finds any non-compliance of food safety and fire/
life safety with self-audit standard, it will be resolved as soon as possible
in achieving safe operation. Apart from these, a comprehensive crisis
management plan is created to protect the Hotel and customers from
inevitable threats.

Personal data protection practice

With the EU’s General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) coming into
effect on 25 May 2018, we have worked closely with our hotel manager,
Marriott, to ensure compliance measures are in place. Our hotel manager
has undertaken a significant amount of work to ensure the hotel is GDPR
ready. The Hotel has further strengthened their data governance and
privacy programs, as well as their centralized systems, in preparation for
the GDPR implementation. A number of specific actions including, but
not limited to, the update of procedures to ensure appropriate response
is made to individual rights requests from our guests and associates
as required under GDPR. The hotel manager has updated terms and
conditions of loyalty programs, privacy statements and notices, as well as
hotel registration cards to encompass GDPR principles. They will also ask
customer for their consent before any release of personal information if
necessary. The hotel manager has conducted holistic review of marketing
and digital processes and policies to ensure accountability and data
governance. The hotel manager has updated contracts with new privacy
language to ensure the Hotel is fully compliant with GDPR as well as other
relevant personal data privacy regulations in France.

Compliance

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B7. Anti-corruption

It is our policy and we believe it is of paramount importance that
businesses are conducted in accordance with applicable rules,
regulations and social standards. The virtue of integrity, honesty and
fairness have been given the highest priorities. No such rules, regulations
or standards should be traded in exchange for business benefits or even
for as small as a guest feedback.

All hotel staff are required to stringently abide by the anti-corruption
guidelines and policies of the Hotel where bribery in any form is
prohibited. In cases when breaching of anti-corruption guidelines
are spotted, disciplinary actions including immediate termination of
employment and involvement of local authorities would be taken.
Whistleblowing hotline and online channel are set up for staff to report
any fraud, bribery and corruption. Whistleblowers can come forward on
the condition of anonymity to protect them from retaliation.

Hotel manager will also provide trainings to hotel staff on issue of
corruption on a regular basis.

Compliance
During the Reporting Period, no legal case was filed against the Hotel or
its employee with regards to corruption issues.

B8. Community

It is our policy to encourage our employees and hotel manager to
participate in and support in community services in order to lead a
healthy and balanced lifestyle.

Compliance

The Hotel held a bake sale in late 2019 to raise fund for the association “Le
cancer du sein parlons-en!” (Breast Cancer, Let's Talk About It!), which is a
French NGO that aims to increase attention and support for breast cancer,
early detection, and palliative care of this disease.

The Group will also participate in community and public welfare activities
whenever possible.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We believe that sound internal control, risk management and compliance
systems are foundation for embracing good corporate governance. The
Group is committed to upholding high standards of business integrity,
honesty, ethics and transparency in our operations. For more detail
of our corporate governance practices, please refer to our Corporate
Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

[B P E TR N A EPEE R R

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and
review a sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems. An enterprise risk management ("ERM”) framework is in place to
implement risk management and internal control effectively.

Our risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risks of failure to achieve the
Company's business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Effective risk management resides at all levels of the Group. Staff in
different business units identify and manage risks during their daily
operation, the management is responsible for identifying, assessing
and responding to risks at strategic level. Reporting to the Board, the
Audit Committee reviews and monitors major risks and effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems. Through this top down
and bottom up approach, together with independent review by the
independent internal control consultant, assisted the Group to manage
its major risks in an effective manner.

Risk Management Structure

[ B B R 2R A

BEkEERAREEE
EremRHERAERY Mg —ERREZE
FAT 2B 2 AE&W$&TﬂfIM
R - ARFRERIEXARER
BEXARE? ﬁ”T%J) @UJEAZEMJ—L
REIE R NEBESHE ©

AW RREERAMEEFESEEEM
FEHBAREERARBXBG AR 2R - &
BREABRRALIBRREEIRHEAIEM I
RBE IR -

B EEERE
RREENBRATEARELTERET
WEE - TRAXKELZETIE@RNEERK
BERBRETIENLEERAR EEERRER
A A RESREET AR - B%EE
SEERIMERTIERARALARERE KR
NEMEZEHE2RR  IRNEEEER -
BREEEEHa LM NREA M ENERT
Ao MEBYAMETEBERMAEZBILR
A AARENERTAERETIEAR -

The Board

] EERRERENAEIEHE

Oversees the risk management and internal control systems;

Determines the Group'’s business strategies and risk appetite;

BEAEE 2 EHREEMEARAZE

Reviews at least annually the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

systems; and
L EF—

i ET R E T M A BREEAE IR 2 P R

Monitors the risk management and internal control systems in an on-going manner.

FEERARERENAIBEEIESE -

Audit Committee

BEZREE

control systems;

Oversees the evaluation and improvement process of risk management and internal

EERBRERENABEIEHE 2 IR RRERF

Reviews the Group's risk register; and

BZHAKERRERERM &

Reviews and approves the internal control review plan and review results.

E M ALE BRI
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT
EiERERASREEERE

Risk Management Structure

B EEEE
Management and staff « ldentify and monitor all risks relevant to daily operations of the Group;
EEERET BRI REREAREE B EBEERB G RR

Report to the Board and the Audit Committee on the risks identified including strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks and its changes during the Year;

ﬁ%%‘\&%ﬁiéAEi&Eﬁ%EUﬁXEﬁﬂﬁ  BIERRE 28 M BERK

Implement and execute and on-going monitor risk management and internal control
processes; and

it T REEERRAREEMAMEZERERF - &

Develop and execute appropriate action plans to mitigate the risk-identified and to
resolve material internal control defects.

HERMITEENITEE - UEREEHERZER - ARBRERAEEE

R o
Internal audit function and - Outsource the internal audit function to an independent internal control consultant;
external auditors 1SR EBEAZ TAEINA T8 7 N EPESHERAR

M ERE AT AR M HNIE AR BR A
Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems;

Tt SR B R B IR % R B B R R S K

The scope of the internal control review is risk-based and is reviewed by the Audit
Committee;

ARSI R N c HIEARRAKE  TEHESZZE SRR

Communicate review result directly to the Audit Committee; and

HEZREQERBBRNE

External auditor is also be able to communicate internal control issues they noticed
during their audit to the Audit Committee directly.

SNB AT REZZ S S ERAREAERTBREPRIE 2 ARREERAE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

FEREERARREE R E

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The risk management process defined the procedures for identifying,
assessing, responding and monitoring risks and their changes. The
management discusses regularly with each operating functions to collect
their views towards the risks they have identified at operation level, and
to strengthen their understanding to risk management at the Group's
strategic view level to foster two way communication. Risk identification
is a continuous and interactive process, major risks are communicate
between the bottom and the top.

Define risk
universe

FE R RS E

Monitoring and
report changes

B3 I 4R 5 B

Mitigate risks
B (R B

R EERF
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ERAIERzERNER - Y REEEER
BB Em MG T HRARERE - NREE
FARE - ARERNE—EREEBRET -
Mgt TRESEZZRMR

|dentify risks
sl L

Assess risks
identified

HEE S

Bl o R 2 B2

Significant risks are classified into one of the four categories: strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance. After identified all
relevant risks, the management assesses the potential impact and
possibilities of the risks and prioritise the risks, appropriate internal control
measures are then developed to mitigate the risks. Also, effectiveness
of internal control measures and changes of risks are monitored in
an on-going manner and are communicated to the Board and Audit
Committee to allow their monitoring at the top level.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

MAIN FEATURES OF OUR RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Maintain an effective internal control system at operational level

Establish clear internal control policies and procedures, clearly
define the responsibilities, authorities and accountabilities of each
key positions;

Establish code of conduct, explain the Group's requirements on
integrity and ethical value to all staff;

Establish whistle blowing mechanism, encourage employees to
report incidents of misconduct or fraud;

Establish appropriate level of information technology access rights,
avoid leakage of price sensitive information; and

Establish insider information disclosure policy, including reporting
channels and responsible person of disclosure, unified response
to external enquiries and obtain advices from professionals or the
Stock Exchange, if necessary.

In evaluating the effectiveness of internal control systems, the Board has
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

On-going risk monitoring at risk management level

The management identifies and mitigates major risks according to the risk
management process, the identified risks are summarised in risk register
and submitted to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review
together with a 3-year internal control review plan to enable the Board
and the Audit Committee effectively monitor major risks of the Group and
how the risks are managed. Major risks relevant to the Group are shown
on pages 51 to 53 of this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT
EREERABEERE

Independent review Bt

The Group has appointed an independent internal control consultant AREBCZEB I APELEMETAFEE
to conduct an internal control review!' for the year, the scope of review ZAEBEEIE MR c RMENEBERE_—_ZT— N
has covered the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. The F—A—BE-_ZT—NAF+_A=+—8H
results of the internal control review has been submitted to the Audit Mo AHEERN CERERIEBZELZES °
Committee.

The management has established remediation and improvement plan EREDME BB LR A B S5 B E
for internal control weaknesses identified. Nothing has come to the Audit AR AR EE  c BEREEENEFTSTE
Committee’s or the Board's attention to believe that risk management BETAEEREUNSEREAEEZRBE

and internal control systems of the Group are inadequate or ineffective. I8 N N EPES IR E B N R S RN o
0 The internal control review performed by the internal control consultant does ! NS B PERE T A (E.2 N BB B 1 d i U0 T 1
not constitute an assurance engagement made in accordance with the Hong KRBT B @I N (EEFE
Kong Standards on Auditing, Hong Kong Standards on Review or Hong Kong BIY (B EFEHZEER ) (BEZEZE
Standards on Assurance Engagement issued by the Hong Kong Institute of FEERID 7T 2 125 ZFE -

Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors present their annual report and audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries comprise the hotel operation and money
lending. The principal activities and other particulars of subsidiaries of the
Group are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this report for further details on review of the Group’s business and
particulars of important events affecting the Group during the Year,
together with future development of the Group.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group's hotel operation segment and money lending segment as
determined by the Board. The content below is not intended to be an
exhaustive list of all the risks and uncertainties that may arise.

Hotel Operation

(i) Operational risks
Notwithstanding the active monitoring and supervision of
performance of the Hotel by the Group, daily operations of the
Hotel are delegated to the hotel manager, pursuant to the Hotel
management agreement signed with third-party hotel manager.
Dependent on the ability of hotel manager, the failure of hotel
manager to manage the Hotel in an efficient and effective manner
could have a material adverse effect on financial results of the
Group.

Furthermore, if any of the hotel management agreements
are terminated prior to their expiration, we may experience
disruptions to our operations, and will then required to seek for
replacement of hotel manager.

Finally, the Hotel is operated under brand name of the hotel
manager. As a result, the continuation on revenue generation
relies on the success of the hotel manager in maintaining
reputation and enhancing the recognition of their brand.
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

Competition

The Group owns a Hotel in France in which the hospitality
industry is highly competitive due to ongoing supply of new
hotels and renovation of existing hotel properties. The intensity
of competition is affected by a range of factors including political
stability of country where the Hotel is located, regional and global
economic conditions, convenience of location, interior design
and amenities offered, as well as travel pattern of customers. The
Group is committed to offer the best of our services and hotel
experience to our guests.

Economic and market risks

The Group’s business is exposed to risks of unfavourable
movements in the global and regional economies and financial
markets, in particular to the markets where the Hotel is located.
Change in economic conditions would lead to recession, inflation,
deflation, currency fluctuations, availability of financing, interest
rates and other factors that are beyond control of the Group.
Occurrence of any of the above may reduce revenue, increase
operating costs and lower asset value of the Group.

Terrorism, diseases and natural disasters

The Group's business could be adversely impacted by acts of God,
wars, terrorist attacks, riots, diseases and other events beyond our
control. The Group cannot predict the occurrence of these events.
An increased threat of terrorism would affect travel patterns and
reduce the number of travellers of different categories. All of the
above events would eventually adversely affect the business and
financial performance of the Hotel.

Indebtedness and interest rates

The Group maintains certain level of indebtedness to partly
finance the hotel property investment. The indebtedness level
could increase the vulnerability of the Group to adverse general
economic or industry conditions, and restrict the Group from
making strategic acquisitions or taking advantage of business
opportunities. Hence, increase in interest rates could materially
and adversely affect the results of the Group.

Foreign exchange fluctuations

The Group has hotel operation in France in which revenue and
expenses are denominated mainly in Euro and United States
dollar. Therefore, the Group’s financial results are exposed
to foreign exchange risk as a result of fluctuation in currency
exchange rates.
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(iii)

(iv)
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(vii)  Information technology systems

The Group is dependent on information technology systems
provided by the hotel manager and by other third parties to
monitor and operate the day-to-day operations of the Hotel.
These systems include booking, check-in/check-out, management
of rooms and collection of payment etc. Any disruption of these
systems could result in the Hotel failing to operate. Furthermore,
operations of the above systems are also subject to information
security and cyber threats. The Group together with the hotel
manager will consistently review, maintain or upgrade these
information technology systems when required to minimize
system down-time and defend against cyber threats.

Money Lending

Credit risk

A credit risk is the risk of default on a loan that may arise from borrowers
failing to meet loan repayment obligation when due. To control credit
risk, the Group requires borrowers to provide sufficient collaterals before
mortgage loans will be granted. We will also regularly monitor and review
our loan portfolio. Notwithstanding these measures, the Group might still
suffer from financial losses if the economic climate in Hong Kong changes
adversely and abruptly so that net proceeds from disposal of collaterals
might become insufficient to cover mortgage loan granted and loan
interests receivable.

We are attentive to consumption of natural resources and reduction of
pollution during the course of managing our businesses. It is our goal
to minimise our environmental impacts through recycling of materials,
encouragement of resources savings and reduction of wastes. The Group
is committed to ensure our compliance with relevant environmental
protection laws and regulations. We also require our business partners to
comply with relevant environmental protection laws and regulations. For
further details on performance of the Group on environmental aspects
during the Year, please refer to our Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 36 to 45.

The Group requires operations of the Company and its subsidiaries to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations in the territories in which
we operate. During the Year, the Board was not informed of any events
relating to violation of laws and regulations.
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EEEHREE

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group has in place remuneration policies to ensure provision of
adequate rewards to employees with recognised experience of the
assigned roles and duties. The Group also provides other benefits
including bonuses, mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance
scheme and participation to share option scheme.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good relationship with our
customers. We have in place a mechanism to keep track on customers’
feedback and identify areas for improvement. Customer’s complaints
once acknowledged and reported will be dealt with timely, fairly and
diligently.

To ensure efficient delivery of quality products and services to our
customers, the Group recognises the importance of maintaining close
and long-term relationship with suppliers. The Group will ensure fairness
when conducting procurement activities and a consistent balance on
qualities of products and services against value-for-money.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the audited financial
statements on pages 71 to 179.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Dividend Policy

The Board may from time to time propose the payment of a dividend,
if any, with respect to the shares of the Company listed on the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the following dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”).
Subject to the relevant laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws, dividend may
be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or period as:

(i) interim dividend;
(if) final dividend;
(iii) special dividend; and

(iv) any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.
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Any final dividend proposed by the Board for any financial year shall be
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company.

The declaration of a dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board,
which will take into account the following factors, in no particular order of
importance, when considering the payment of a dividend:

(@) the financial results of the Group;

(b) the cash flow situation and future cash requirements of the Group;

(@) the general business conditions and strategies of the Group;

(d) the future capital expenditure or debt settlement requirements of

the Group;
(e) future operations and earnings of the Group;
(f) the taxation consideration;

(9) the statutory and regulatory restrictions; and
(h) any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

Given the fluctuating nature of earnings or loss of the Group, the
Board does not recommend setting a target dividend payout ratio, or
maintaining a consistent dividend payment over time. There can be no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific
period.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate is set out on page 180. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options
during the Year are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 46 to the financial statements and in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December

2019 are set out in note 46 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the Year, the Company did not make any charitable contributions

(2018: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 14% of the total sales for the Year, sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 5%. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 41%
of the total purchases for the Year, purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 14% of the total purchases

for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s

five largest customers or suppliers disclosed above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:
Dr. Li Zhigiang (Chairman)
(service term expired on 22 May 2019)
Mr. Xue Jian (CEO)
Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tam Sun Wing

Mr. Ng Ge Bun

Mr. He Yi

The Directors, save and except for the Chairman, are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with clauses 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13 to 14 of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

Subject to shareholders’ approval at annual general meetings authorising
the Board, remuneration of the Directors are determined by the Board
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provides that the Directors for the time being acting in
relation to any of the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done. The Company
has arranged for insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities to
provide appropriate cover for legal actions brought against its Directors
and officers arising out of corporate activities of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director or any entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the Year or at the end of the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
The Group entered into or maintained following management contracts
for its hotel during the Year.

Paris Marriott Hotel

The Group maintained a management agreement (dated 16 June 1995),
as amended from time to time (the “Marriott Agreement”) in relation to
the management of Paris Marriott Hotel, with Marriott Hotels Manager
France SAS (“Marriott"). The Marriott Agreement shall continue for thirty
years after 1 January 2000. Marriott has option to renew the Marriott
Agreement on the same terms and conditions for each of three successive
periods of ten years.

The Group also signed a hotel asset management services contract with
Jones Lang LaSalle hotels & Hospitality Group in relation to the Paris
Marriott Hotel on 2 September 2019. The contract period commenced on
1 November 2019 and will expire on 31 October 2022.

No Director had interests in the above contracts.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The interests and short positions of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code") set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as
follows:

Long position - The following represents shares to be allotted
and issued upon exercise of share options granted to the relevant
Director
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Name of Directors Capacity options held shares
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Mr. Xue Jian Beneficial owner 127,780,000 127,780,000
B EREBA

Mr. Law Wing Chi, Stephen Beneficial owner 10,000,000 10,000,000
BKERE BEHREAA

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive has BEXFIBEEI)N  REENTETHAS

registered an interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above and in the section headed “Share option scheme” below, at no
time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Further details of the
Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the audited financial statements.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company'’s listed securities.
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PERSONS HOLDING 5% OR MORE INTEREST IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES ERZAT

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than a Director or RZE—NEFE+=_BA=1+—8  BELXQF
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the BEREANHEIEMNEINBCIEEETEBETEEL

IR AD R AR B IR 7 R 15 B 5% A L

shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

BRfMzicsk  TIAL(RRARESRTE
TTRABRIN EAR B 2 B D RARBE D

AR RAR
Long position Ha

Number of Percentage of

ordinary issued share
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held capital
Fr¥s HEET
BREEHB 14 HEBEREA RABDL
Mr. Du Shuang Hua' Interest of controlled corporation 708,000,000 5.54%
e S A RiEEHEE R
Happy Sino International Limited' Beneficial interest 708,000,000 5.54%
Bt
Mr. Zhang He Yi' Beneficial interest 1,400,000,000 10.96%
RMESLLE BEamiEs
Ms. Lu Xiaomei? Interest of controlled corporation 753,190,000 5.89%
B/ R 12 REEHERE R
Sincere Profit Group Limited? Beneficial interest 753,190,000 5.89%
BEamiEs
Ga Leung Investment Company Limited? Beneficial Interest 1,866,666,666 14.61%
EREREBRARE Bt
Mr. Sun Yong Feng? Interest of controlled corporation 1,866,666,666 14.61%
HRoKIE S A3 RiEEHEE R
Beneficial interest 133,000,000 1.04%
BamtEs
Ms. Meng Ya* Interest of spouse 1,999,666,666 15.65%
F ARt [N e
Mr. Hu Yishi Beneficial interest 1,300,000,000 10.17%
AR KR4 Bt
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U Mr. Du Shuang Hua and Mr. Zhang He Yi beneficially owns 85% and 15%
interest respectively in the issued share capital of Happy Sino International
Limited. Mr. Du Shuang Hua is deemed to be interested in the 708,000,000
shares held by Happy Sino International Limited under the provisions of
the SFO.

2 Ms. Lu Xiaomei beneficially owns 100% interest in the issued share capital
of Sincere Profit Group Limited. Ms. Lu Xiaomei is deemed to be interested
in the 753,190,000 shares held by Sincere Profit Group Limited under the
provisions of the SFO.

2 Mr. Sun Yong Feng beneficially owns 100% interest in the issued capital
of Ga Leung Investment Company Limited. Mr. Sun Yong Feng is deemed
to be interested in the 1,866,666,666 shares held by Ga Leung Investment
Company Limited under the provisions of the SFO.

2 Ms. Meng Ya is the spouse of Mr. Sun Yong Feng. Ms. Meng Ya is deemed
to be interested in the 1,999,666,666 shares in which Mr. Sun Yong Feng is
interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person, other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests or
short positions are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” above, had any interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 15 to 35 of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company did not have any connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions which were subject to
the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules. The related party
transactions as disclosed in note 40 to the audited financial statements
did not fall under the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions in the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that
the Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31 December 2019 and as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the Group
are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Emolument policy on the remuneration of the Directors and the
employees of the Group is reviewed periodically and determined by
reference to market terms, the Group’s performance and individual
qualifications and performance. The Company has adopted the Scheme
as an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
Scheme are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young ("EY"). EY
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of EY as auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Law Wing Chi, Stephen
30 March 2020
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Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY:

To the shareholders of Kai Yuan Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kai Yuan
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 71 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

FREENEE
ARBASHERBERMANIERHE  RA
HARGEVBRRNEITRSEENS
He BAAEBFEBGAVBERRILRLAER
ABEREELER - RATSHELFHEE
HEFBNER - TXEHIBRFINFES WA RE
BEEBEENER -

BRI BITANRE [EHEN B F it 476 T
WERAAENEME | —BTPAEANEE - &
REGFEEEMEENEE - Bt - HANT
AATERRATRERMIGGRAMBEHRE
FHEEABRBE AR R RNEF o HA
MITHEZF (BEEE TR FEMMITHIRR
FIMGONER  REMGREMERROBRT
BRIRMER -

statements.

Key audit matter

BEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB NAEEERENSER

Impairment assessment of the French hotel property

% BB JE Y3 2 BB T A

The Group had the French hotel property with a carrying
amount of HK$2,776 million, represented 67% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019. The carrying
amount of the Group’s net assets was higher than the Group’s
market capitalization, the Group involved external experts
to perform an impairment assessment on the French hotel
property based on an income approach to estimate the fair
value less costs of disposal. This matter was significant to our
audit because the balance of the French hotel property was
material to the consolidated financial statements. Further, the
assessment process was complex and involved significant
judgements.

RZZE-AE+ZA=+—H0  E£E¥EEREEER
2,776,000,0008 T 2 EBEE ¥ - B ESEREE
67% - BEBFEEZHREESN BEEBEZELRM
B BREETHIMNEERBRBUAEREBBEYHEE
TRERE - AEAFERELERR - LEFEHHFIH
B BEE - REAREBEREY R 2 SRR BRE
BEE - 1tHh - FTEBIZERE - B RERHE -

Related disclosures about the impairment of non-financial
assets are included in note 3 to the financial statements.

BRGFERMEERE HRAREIN M B RERMEES -

Our procedures included, among others, assessing the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of its external
experts and involving our valuation experts to assist us in
evaluating the methodologies used by the Group's external
experts to determine the fair value less costs of disposal as at
31 December 2019 and testing the assumptions, in particular,
the average daily rate per room, occupancy rate, discount rate,
long-term growth rate and terminal capitalisation rate.
BAWREFEE (HTeR) HEIINEERZBEREE -
RRAREFEHMN  UYZHRMNEEZRBBHMTE &
EBNBEERRET T —NF+A=1T—H2ZA¥E
WELERAMER 2% ARARABERE - Bl
BEEFETFHAME  AEEX BRX  RHERERK
REBE o

BRIERAERAR | 2000 £5% 65



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

B 2R E S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
FARBEITEIEE)

Key audit matter

BREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AN ETNMEERRETSE

Fair value of an unlisted equity investment

FLTRAKE < 2 FlE

The Group had an unlisted equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income with a
carrying amount of HK$14 million as at 31 December 2019.
The Group assessed its fair value based on valuation multiples
method. This matter was significant to our audit because the
balance of the unlisted equity investment was material to the
consolidated financial statements. Further, the assessment
process was complex and involved significant judgements.
EEEAE—HETERATEFARMEERAZIE LT
BRAKRE AR B AF+_A=+t—HZKRHEER
14,000,000/87C - BERERBHERBBETGHEAFE-
HEEHRMNEZBEE  RARIELTREAREZE
HREGAVBEBRRBER - o SFEEFER B R
BEARHE -

Related disclosures about the assessment of the unlisted
equity investment's fair value are included in notes 3, 18 and 42
to the financial statements.
BRI LTRAKREATFEZBARBHNT B RE
BisE3 ~ BisE18 KR MiaE42 -
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Our procedures included, among others, involving our
valuation experts to assist us in evaluating the methodologies
used by the Group and testing the assumptions, in particular,
determination of comparable public companies (peers),
selection of price multiple and discount for illiquidity.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

B ZRENHRE S

FHMAHEMBER

ERREZAHHEMENAR - HHWERE
RERMABEB T BRI LB LS
ZBED RS AN E R o FREIF RAS R A
B E AR R TR

B EEMBRRMOANERY TRE
HEMN BT TE@HZFEMENER
EREANEE S

REMABAGREVBRERME - RAVEE
EHEEMER - MAEMEBRES - BMA
ZEEBEMEN T D EEA M HMRAIK
PMEBTBRETATHOBAEEANLSE -
NXHBEUFEEAH R -

EERREYBBRRARENSE

BERRESARERBE B SIS HEM
BB B RE LN REFECR AR R
ERBEEMBRAFHOESMBEERSE - A
NGEEEERR/VENRNIEE - ARRES
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B E AR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B ZBEMRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
BUZBMBRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF REMF BT RN ERERAREY
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B ZBEMRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
meEREmR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NF+-A=+—RLFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Wizt FET FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS SEREER
REVENUE & 5 244,685 300,710
Cost of sales SEERA (202,937) (223,070)
Gross profit EF 41,748 77,640
Other income and gains HEA Kz 5 32,431 14,873
Administrative expenses THRFAX (48,314) (41,366)
Other expenses Hihf% 6 - (453)
Finance costs BB R A 7 (52,924) (49,346)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM REFBEEEER 2
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BRELAT (E1R) /s F 8 (27,059) 1,348
Income tax expense e x 1 (3,556) (1,121)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REFELEER 2
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FR(ER),/wF (30,615) 227
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRILER
Profit for the year from a discontinued operation 38 B 2 4R 1F ¥ 75 2 F 3 K 12 - 338,629
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR(ER),/HF (30,615) 338,856
Attributable to: AT RS,
Owners of the Company AARERA (30,615) 338,856
Non-controlling interests IR - =
(30,615) 338,856
(LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO AR A @iEzsisH AJE(L
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY SRR (E18), /&7 14
Basic and diluted BEARREE
~ For (loss)/profit for the year -BRERBER) SRS HK(0.24) centsi&fll  HK2.65 centsi Il
— For (loss)/profit from continuing operations —BREFERCEEL L
(B1]),/2fmE HK(0.24) centsi&{ll  HK0.002 cents;&lll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SLeZEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NFT-A=+—RALFE

2019 2018
—EB-hE —F-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Mz FET FEIT
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EN(EBE),Swmf (30,615) 338,856
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hih 2= mHEE
Other comprehensive loss that may be RE \{é,ﬁﬂ MR REEF DI E
reclassified to profit or loss in BakEMEEERE :
subsequent periods:
Cash flow hedges: HWERmEE I
Effective portion of changes in fair value FRNEE Y HPIA
of hedging instruments arising during NEZE 2
the year BE D 26 (5,298) (2,184)
Reclassification adjustments for ARG EERRZ
loss included in the consolidated B8 2 B O EAE
statement of profit or loss 26 10,779 13,632
Income tax effect Frisfis 2 29 (1,962) (3,549)
3,519 7,899
Exchange differences: EHZER
Exchange differences on translation of MERINEGFRES 2
foreign operations P& 5 =58 (35,455) (70,727)
Net other comprehensive loss that REZRHMAIEEF O
may be reclassified to profit or loss in EEnRZEMEHEEE
subsequent periods HRE (31,936) (62,828)
Other comprehensive loss that will not be REZBETEEN D
reclassified to profit or loss in EEmik EMEHEEBE
subsequent periods:
Equity investments designated at EERAFEFAREMEE
fair value through other WA ZBRAIZE -
comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value NEES) (10,637) =
Net other comprehensive loss that will not REGHETEETOHESE
be reclassified to profit or loss in BakxsHib2HEER
subsequent periods it (10,637) o
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREM T EEE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B HEHIA) (42,573) (62,828)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FREE(ER),MALHE
FOR THE YEAR (73,188) 276,028
Attributable to: LA pE(L -
Owners of the Company AREIEGA (73,188) 276,028
Non-controlling interests FEEAR R - =
(73,188) 276,028

72 Kai Yuan Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR RBR

As at 31 December 2019
RZE—NF+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HKS’000 HKS$000
HtaF FEIT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBNE E
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MERE 15 2,814,235 2,914,691
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 16 3,845 -
Intangible assets B EE 17 298 426
Equity investment designated at fair value R AT ER AHA
through other comprehensive income 2ERRAZBRAEE 18 13,799 24,779
Long-term prepayments REATERIFIE 18 5,444 -
Deferred tax assets IEEFI A & 29 12,351 20,025
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 2,849,972 2,959,921
CURRENT ASSETS MENVE
Inventories FE 19 957 978
Trade receivables FEUBRZR 20 12,798 20,609
Loans receivable EWE R 21 35,000 210,000
Prepayments, other receivables TERTFIR - AR
and other assets FIEAEMEE 22 35,374 27,066
Pledged deposits [REEEUIVER 23 38,801 23,011
Cash and cash equivalents RENRBEESEED 23 1,237,219 1,097,590
Total current assets MENEELE 1,360,149 1,379,254
Total assets EEE 4,210,121 4,339,175
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEE &
Trade payables FETRR R 24 2,619 5,954
Other payables and accruals H b FE A 5RIE K
EErER 25 62,052 50,008
Derivative financial instruments TESmI A 26 1,059 10,095
Lease liabilities HERE 27 1,788 =
Interest-bearing bank borrowings S RBRTEE 28 - 1,534,818
Tax payable FERTRIE 1,182 2,137
Total current liabilities MENE EERE 68,700 1,603,012
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) TEVEE,/ (BfE)FE 1,291,449 (223,758)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERRE AR 4,141,421 2,736,163
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR RBR

As at 31 December 2019
RZE-NF+=ZRA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HKS’000 HKS'000
it FETT FET

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIRITEE 28 1,480,951 =
Lease liabilities HERE 27 2,145 =
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFTEA G 29 232,170 240,136
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMTA 26 3,316 =
Total non-current liabilities R EEEE 1,718,582 240,136
Net assets BEFE 2,422,839 2,496,027

EQUITY P

Share capital A& A 30 1,277,888 1,277,888
Reserves i 32 1,144,951 1,218,139
Total equity b e 2,422,839 2,496,027

Approved on behalf of the board of directors:

Xue Jian

23]

Director

EBEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

[ A4
EREREER
For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-Z-NF+-A=+—RLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADAERAEL
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at fair
value through
other
comprehensive
Cash flow income*  Exchange
Share hedge HATEFA  fluctuation
Share Share option  reserve* EMZEMA  resee*  Retained Total
apitll  premium*  reseve*  B&NiE 2&WEEz  ENRD profits equity
ke RibEE BRERE gk ATERE e REER  ER4E
HKkS'000 HKS000 HKkS'000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKs 000
T FAT AT FAT AT FAT AT FET
A1 January 2018 R-Z-\F-B-B 278 106 W (154 S ey oI 12199
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - 33885 338856
Other comprehensive income for theyear. — ERZMZENA;
Cash flow hedges, net of tax BenEh (BNkHE) - - - 7899 - - - 7899
Bichange differences on translation BERNERAEE,
of foreign operations EizE - - - = (70727) = (70727)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZEMALE - - - 7899 - (70727) 333836 276008
Transfer of share option reserve BERER
upon the forfeiture of share options ERERERE - - (15) . _ _ 15 .
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+A=1-R 127188 1007637 2158 (75%) - (56N A 2496007
At 1 January 2019 W-E-nE-A-A 1,277,888 1,027,637 2,158 (7,525) - (115,625) 311,494 2,496,027
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (30615 (30615)
Other comprehensive income for the year: EREMRERA:
Cash flow hedges, net of tax BeREHh (2HREE) - = - 3,519 - - = 3,519
Bichange diferences on translation BERNERFEE,
of foreign operations EizE - - - - - (35,455) - (35,455)
Changes i fairvalue of equity investments — EERAFEFAZM2E
designated at fair value thiough other WA RERELTEED
comprehensive income, net of tax (BIBHE) - - - - (10,637) - - (10,637)
Total comprehensive loss for the year EREEFRLEE - - - 3,519 (10,637) (35,455) (30,615) (73,188)
At31 December 2019 WZE-NEtZRZT-B 12m888 1,020,637 2,158 (4006) (10,637  (151080) 280,879 2422839
i These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * WEHEEEKEAVBERRATRANZLE
HK$1,144,951,000 (2018: HK$1,218,139,000) in the consolidated statement B & HE1,1449510008 T (Z T — NF :

of financial position.

1,218,139,000/& 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NFT-A=+—RALFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
Htaz FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ HREARLEF2HERE
(Loss)/profit before tax: BRELRT(EIE), SR -
From continuing operations REFBELEER (27,059) 1,348
From a discontinued operation REBEKIEER 12 - 339,208
Adjustments for: AYEH AT 3% -
Finance costs B E R AN 52,924 49,346
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 2 WS 12 - (335,570)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BRELREETE
equipment 15 37,704 40,216
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEINE 16 5,511 =
Amortisation of intangible assets E A ERN 17 117 135
69,197 94,683
Decrease in inventories FERL 21 67
Decrease in trade receivables FEMER OB A 7,811 2,451
Decrease/(increase) in loans receivable FEWE TR, (1) 175,000 (210,000)
Increase in prepayments, other TERTFUIR - B EYGRIE
receivables and other assets N E A B EE N (7,113) (4,215)
Decrease in trade payables & BR RO (3,335) (4,244)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HEihEN BN ETER
and accruals 20O ) 13,957 (521)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations LEBATR(FTA)RE 255,538 (121,779)
Luxemburg tax paid BN ERERHIE (30) (46)
France profit tax paid BAEBSH (2,238) =
Hong Kong profits tax paid BRI EBREH - (496)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) KRBTSR, (FTHR)
operating activities REMEFE 253,270 (122,321)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-Z-—NF+-A=1+—ALFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Htat FHET FET
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) mESEE AT (FTR)
operating activities BeReF58 253,270 (122,321)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEREEHZRERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME - BELEE
equipment I8 H (12,029) (6,090)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AT 33 - 797,114
Increase in long-term prepayments REATEAT BB N (5,444) =
Purchases of an equity BEETEAFEA
investment designated at fair value Eh2mEmBAZ AR
through other comprehensive income "E - (24,779)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from REES(FTA) /5
investing activities REnEFE (17,473) 766,245
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES KERMERBDZRERE
(Increase)/decrease in pledged time deposits 2T ERtERR (3EA0),
NN (15,790) 1,090
Payment of directly attributable transaction ~ SxtEt BRITEEEE
costs to interest-bearing bank borrowings JEAL X H R AR (21,930) -
Principal portion of lease payments HENFAR SIS (5,423) =
Interest paid BFE (47,293) (49,673)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEE AR S RE
FRR (90,436) (48,583)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH Be kRS EWIEM
EQUIVALENTS HEE 145,361 595,341
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUREMREEEY
of year 1,097,590 513,396
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [B R & &) 7 2/ 2R % (5,732) (11,147)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FRACKRRECEED
YEAR 23 1,237,219 1,097,590
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and the principal place
of business is 28th Floor, Chinachem Century Tower,

178 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

ARREEER
RARTRBREFTMAIL E#HE
EREFRR  EROREABAER
SHBERAR([HRA]) £ o AR
A FE B 3 =5 R bl & Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda * EE&E ¥R BB EET
& T 78R E M 4D EI5 2818 o

ARRAEBERBREZERRHETH
BRARI2RFBELERBEE

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in hotel operation and
money lending.

B 2 R
AAAMBATRERT -

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation Nominal value of Percentage of
or registration/ issued and fully  issued share/registered
principal country paid-up share/ capital attributable
of operations registered capital to the Company
Form of MBS E2RIR KARES
Name of subsidiary legal entity RRamed/  SRRO2ERE/ ERTRG/ Principal activities
WEARAR EEERKA IREEER aMER aMEAEAL  TEEHR
Direct% Indirect %
E#% %
Crown Value Limited Corporation Hong Kong/ HKS1 100 - Investment holding
NG| Hong Kong 18T RERK
BE/ BB
Splendid Holdings S.ar.. Corporation Luxembourg/ EUR20,000 = 100 Investment holding
N Luxembourg 200000 REZR
ERE/ERE
MCE OpCo HoldCo Corporation France/France EUR6,973,155 - 100 Investment holding
NG HE/ R 6,973,15581 REER
MCE OpCo Corporation France/France EUR8,835915 = 100 Hotel operation
] B/ ER 8,835915E EEgE
Splendid PropCo Corporation France/France EUR44,000,010 - 100 Ownerofa
NS EE /AR 44000010